
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

September 1, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 861 7361 6436 

Password: 334822 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Marty Kelsey 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery - Incident Command Team Update Kim White,  

Director of Emergency Services 

B. Employee Policy (from the Human Resources Committee)  Barbara Sowada 

1. Termination and Appeals 

2. Introductory Period 

C. Rules of Practice Governing Hearings Taylor Jones 

D. Medical Staff Bylaws Dr. Jacques Denker, Medical Staff President 

E. FY 2022 PIPS Priorities Updated PDF Kara Jackson, 

 Director of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety, Risk & Compliance 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Taylor Jones  

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

B. Human Resources Committee  Barbara Sowada 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Capital Expenditure Request (For Action) 

2. Bad Debt (For Action) 

August Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey 

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Marty Kelsey 

G. Governance Committee Taylor Jones 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Taylor Jones 

I. Joint Conference Committee Taylor Jones 
  

1/112



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

September 1, 2021 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 861 7361 6436 

Password: 334822 
 

AGENDA 
 

IX. Board Review of iProtean Barbara Sowada 

X. Contract Review Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

A. Contract Consent Agenda (For Action)  

1. Ambulance Agreement with Castle Rock 

B. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Cardinal Fifth Amendment to Pharmacy Agreement 

2. PolicyStat 

XI. Medical Staff Report Dr. Jacques Denker  

XII. Good of the Order                 Taylor Jones 

XIII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Taylor Jones 

XIV. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

A. Notice of Claim 

XV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

 

2/112



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/112



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

August 4, 2021 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met via Zoom in regular 

session on August 4, 2021, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed 

Tardoni. Excused: Ms. Kandi Pendleton. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Jacques Denker, Medical 

Staff President; Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater County Commissioner Liaison; and Mr. Geoff 

Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Mr. Jones led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Dr. Sowada read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson read a message from a patient from New Mexico regarding a wonderful experience 

in the Emergency Department. Ms. Richardson said it is always nice to hear from people outside 

our community as well as inside about how well things go at our hospital.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Mr. Jones proposed an addition to the agenda under “New Business” for “B. Green River 

Meeting.” Mr. Tardoni said item “B. Employee Policy” under “Old Business” should be changed 

from Mr. Tardoni to Dr. Sowada. The motion to approve the amended agenda as requested was 

made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the July 7, 2021, regular meeting as presented was made by 

Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

  

4/112



 

 

Minutes of the August 4, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Commissioner Smith passed along kudos from the prior day’s commission meeting where The 

Joint Commission annual survey gold standard notification was communicated. He said to keep 

up the great work and said it is a wonderful job by everyone all the way around. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery – Incident Command Team Update 

 

Ms. Kim White, Incident Commander and Director of Emergency Services, reported not a lot has 

changed from her previous report. We continue to see younger patients coming in and admitted or 

transferred. The University of Utah is seeing similar things. Ms. White said we continue to offer 

vaccine clinics. We continue encouraging people to get the vaccine. Covid has not gone away. The 

State Lab of Wyoming has been testing for variants.  

 

Termination and Appeals Policy, Introductory Period, Rules of Practice Governing Hearings  

 

Mr. Jones said placeholders remain on the agenda for the Termination and Appeals Policy, the 

Introductory Period Policy, and the Rules of Practice Governing Hearings.  

 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

Dr. Denker said we are waiting for the attorney assisting with the process to get back to the medical 

staff with updates. 

 

Board Reporting Calendar 

 

The motion to approve the board reporting calendar as presented by Ms. Kara Jackson, Director 

of Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety, Risk and Compliance, was made by Dr. Sowada; second 

by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

Board Policies 

 

Mr. Kelsey thanked staff for the format presented this month. He said the strike thru’s and 

highlighting made it so easy to review and the clean copy at the end was great. The motion to 

approve the board policies as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion 

carried. 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Board Education Proposal 

 

Dr. Sowada said the proposed continuing education plan is in the packet. The focus this year is on 

quality. The proposal is to review an iProtean video every other month and then discuss the subject 

at the board meeting beginning in September. The slate of videos is in the document. The motion 

to approve the board education proposal as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. 

Tardoni. Motion carried.  

5/112



 

 

Minutes of the August 4, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

 

Green River Meeting 

 

Mr. Jones said the Board usually meets in September in Green River and he said the board bylaws 

note the annual meeting in Green River. We did not do that last year because of Covid. Mr. Jones 

said are still not meeting in person and for the foreseeable future, he doesn’t see us meeting in 

person. He said we do not have any problem meeting in Green River, we are just not meeting in 

person anywhere. Mr. Tardoni said he doesn’t feel we should change the bylaws at this point.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson introduced two new leadership team members: Ms. Julia Kershisnik-Sweedler, 

Director of Acute Care Services, and Mr. Brad Kowalski, Interim Director of Information 

Technology. Ms. Richardson said we continue to train staff on person-centered care and 

communicating with empathy. She thanked Commissioner Smith for his kind words for the 

hospital receiving the gold standard from The Joint Commission. She said we have seen significant 

improvements and recognized the quality department. The Joint Commission was very 

complimentary of our staff. Ms. Richardson said we are very proud of our staff. We continue to 

work as hard as we can to fill open positions. Covid has taken a toll on healthcare staffing. Ms. 

Richardson reported she and Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, had a call with Standard and 

Poor’s July 19 to discuss our credit rating. The call went well and information will go to their 

committee and then we can communicate any changes to our rating. Ms. Richardson said we 

continue to work on refinancing our bonds. The auditors are on site this week for the annual audit. 

The exit interview is August 5. Ms. Richardson continues to meet with senior leaders weekly and 

the leadership team monthly. Senior leaders continue to do the groundwork for the next strategic 

plan. We have had some excellent input from the Trustees. The retreat is postponed to later in the 

fall. Ms. Richardson reported the Cerner implementation work continues and we are still scheduled 

for go live October 4. We have asked a lot of employees. Ms. Richardson has been rounding with 

person-centered care committee staff and the information we obtain is beneficial. We continue to 

do Covid testing and vaccine clinics at the front entrance. We participated in the Red Desert parade 

and took first place in the civic category. We had over 100 staff and family members participate, 

and Mr. Jones walked, also. Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. Deb Sutton, Marketing Director, Ms. 

Lena Warren, Community Outreach Director, and Ms. Marianne Sanders, Physician Recruitment 

and Relations Director, for their hard work to make it a success. Ms. Richardson said we are a 

huge supporter of the county fair. The Foundation golf tournament is scheduled August 14. We 

are planning a hospital picnic August 28. The Wyoming Hospital Association annual meeting is 

in Casper September 7-9. The Governance Institute is offering virtual and in person conferences 

September 19-22 in San Diego and October 10-13 in Colorado Springs. Participate registration is 

paid for through our membership with The Governance Institute. Ms. Richardson thanked staff for 

all they are doing and thanked the community for their support.  

 

  

6/112



 

 

Minutes of the August 4, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Dr. Sowada said the report is in the packet. She said there are multiple pages of metrics available 

in the committee area of the portal. Just the minutes and the chair report are included in the board 

meeting packet. She said she had nothing new to report and said everyone is doing a nice job.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said there was nothing new to report from the information included in the packet.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni reported the committee did not meet in July due to the timing of closing the books 

for the year. Ms. Pendleton is a new member and two physicians have been assigned to the 

committee. Mr. Tardoni said he has been working to bring the new members up to speed. Mr. 

Tardoni asked for consideration to schedule committee meetings so at least one or two of the 

physicians assigned can attend.  

 

Capital Expenditure Requests The motion to approve capital expenditure request FY22-10 for 

$141,590 for a budgeted ultrasound machine was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Mr. Tardoni said we are going with GE because after testing, this is what staff prefers. Mr. Jones 

said he appreciated the effort of obtaining bids. The motion carried.  

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,059,856.63 as presented by Mr. 

Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services, was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. 

Sowada. Motion carried. Mr. Tardoni noted $590,000 of that amount is for emergency room 

expenses.  

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said he did not have anything to add to the information in the meeting packet. He said 

the chair report and minutes are in the packet.  

 

Foundation 

 

Mr. Jones said the golf tournament is in August. We continue working on fundraising.  

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey reported the committee did not meet in July. He referenced the chair report in the 

meeting packet. He said staff is working hard on the transition. The committee plans to meet in 

September. Ms. Richardson said we are working on plans and appreciate the Board’s patience 

while we work to meet the Board’s and hospital’s needs.   

 

  

7/112



 

 

Minutes of the August 4, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the committee recommendation was already addressed earlier in the meeting.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said the Board will discuss in executive session.  

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Mr. Jones said there is nothing new to report.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Contract Approved by CEO Since Last Board Meeting 

 

Mr. Jones said the items in the packet are for information only and no action is needed.  

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Denker said Dr. Cielette Karn proposed changes to the annual influenza vaccine program for 

employees and the proposal was approved by the general medical staff and medical executive 

committee. The flu vaccine will be mandatory for staff working at the hospital moving forward. 

Dr. Denker said there are usually exceptions for people with medical issues. Other requests for 

exemption will be taken on a case-by-case basis. Ms. Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, said we 

follow the ADA guidelines.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Kelsey thanked staff on their diligent work on the staff directory and information in the Nasdaq 

portal. He said there are a lot more pictures and job titles and he thinks it is wonderful we are 

working on that.  

 

Mr. Jones said the parade was a lot of fun and it was great to see that many people show up. He 

said it made him think back and he has never seen near as many people show up. He said it speaks 

well to attitudes, culture, and changes over the years.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Mr. Jones said there would be an executive session. He said the Board would take a break until 

2:50 PM and reconvene in executive session. The motion to go into executive session was made 

by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.   

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 3:51 PM, the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Mr. 

Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

8/112



 

 

Minutes of the August 4, 2021 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve credentials for everyone on the list provided by Ms. Kerry Downs, Director 

of Medical Staff Services, was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from July 20, 2021  

1. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff 

 Dr. Piotr Tomasz Tekiela, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Maryellyn Gilfeather, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Shaden Mohammad, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Denis Primakov, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

2. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1year) 

 Dr. James Fierbaugh, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Patrick Fink, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Nicholas Levin, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Wesley Williams, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Brianne Crofts, General Surgery 

 Dr. Benjamin Jensen, Anesthesia  

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Douglas Hughes, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Eric Goldstein, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Raminder Nirula, Tele ICU (U of U) 

5. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Graham Brant-Zawadzki, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Jamal Jones, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Wesley Pedicini, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

6. Reappointment to AHP Staff (2 years) 

 Scott Wilcox, Licensed Professional Counselor (SWCS) 

The motion to approve the physician contract as discussed in executive session was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mr. Jones thanked everyone. There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 

3:55 PM.   

 

      

         ___________________________________ 

      Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

9/112



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County  
Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Priorities  

Fiscal Year 2022 
 

 

 

I. FY 2022 Priorities  

2022 Priorities Measurement/Metric Baseline 
Benchmark/ 

Goals 
AIM Statement & 
SMART Objective 

Target 
Completion 

Dates 

Fiscal Year to 
Date Data 

 

Sepsis  
 

- Improvement of Sepsis 
bundle compliance  

 
 
Responsibility  
Director of Emergency 

Department, Medical Director of 
Emergency Department & 
Clinical Coordinator  
of Emergency Department 
 
 
Oversight Committee 
PIPS Committee 
Reporting Frequency: Monthly 
 
 
Sepsis Team Members  

- Clinical Coordinator of 
Emergency Department 

- Director of Emergency 
Department  

- Medical Director of 
Emergency Department 

- Chief Medical Officer 
- Trauma Coordinator  
- Chief Clinical Officer 
- Chief Nursing Officer 
- Quality Analyst  
- Quality Analyst RN 
- Medical Director of Lab  
- Clinical Coordinator of 

Med/Surg & ICU 
 

 
 
 

Core Sep – 1: Sepsis Bundle 
Compliance  
 
 
Process Metrics:  
- Initial lactate 
- Blood cultures prior to 

antibiotics  
- Broad-spectrum 

antibiotics  
- IV Fluid- 30ml/kg 
- 2 sets vital signs within  

1 hour of fluids 
- Repeat lactate within  

4 hours (if initial greater 
than 2) 

- Reassess hypotension 
after fluids  

- Physician focus exam 
after fluids 

- MD reassessment of 
perfusion  

 
Report Format: 
- Sepsis Dashboard 

 

 
 
 

FY 2021 
July 2020 to  
June 2021 

 
Sepsis 
Bundle 

Compliance  
56.9% 

 
 
 

Benchmark: 
60% 

(Care Compare 

National Hospital 

Average)  

 

- Target Goal: 
64% 

(Care Compare 

Wyoming Hospital 
Average) 

 

- Stretch Goal: 
70% 

 

 
 
 

AIM Statement  
By June 30th, 2022, the Sepsis Team at 
MHSC will implement measures to 
improve Sepsis Bundle Compliance to 
70% to benefit patients with severe 
sepsis and/or septic shock diagnoses.  
 
SMART Objective  
By September 30th, 2021, the Sepsis 

Committee/clinical staff at MHSC will 

ensure blood cultures are drawn prior to 

administering antibiotics to improve our 

sepsis compliance rate to 66% to benefit 

patients with a severe sepsis or septic 

shock diagnosis.  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

AIM 
Statement 
June 30th, 

2022 
 
 
 

SMART 
Objective 

September 
30th, 2021  

 

 
 
 

% 
 

On schedule to 
achieve goal by 
deadline in AIM 

Statement/SMART 
Objective? If not, 

why not? 

10/112



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County  
Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Priorities  

Fiscal Year 2022 

 2 

2022 Priorities Measurement/Metric Baseline 
Benchmark/ 

Goals 
AIM Statement & 
SMART Objective 

Target 
Completion 

Dates 

Fiscal Year to 
Date Data 

 
Patient Experience 
Surveys 
 
Inpatient  
 

Responsibility 
Director of Acute Care Services, 
Director of Women’s Services, 
Hospitalist Director, Perinatal 
Chair 
 
 
 
Oversight Committee  
PIPS Committee 
Reporting Frequency: Monthly 
 
 
 
Team  
Director of Acute Care Services, 
Director of Women’s Services, 
Hospitalist Director, Perinatal 
Chair, Surgery Dept Chair, 
Clinical Coordinator for Women’s 
Services, Clinical Coordinator for 
Acute Care Services, Director of 
Environmental Services, Director 
of Pharmacy, Director of 
Nutrition Services, Director of 
Case Management, Care 
Transition, Facilities  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Inpatient 
 
Likelihood to Recommend 
 
Report Format:  
- Inpatient HCAHPS 

Scorecard Year to Date 
 

 
 
 
 
Inpatient 
 

FY 2021 
July 2020 to  
June 2021 

 
 

 
 
 
Likelihood to 
Recommend 

63.85% 
(25th 

percentile) 
 

 
 
 
 
Inpatient 
 
Likelihood to     
Recommend 
 
- Target Goal: 
50th percentile 
(71.1%) 

 
 
- Stretch Goal: 
75th percentile 
(78.1%) 

 

 
 
 
 
Inpatient  
 
AIM Statement  
By June 30th, 2022, the inpatient units at 
MHSC will implement measures to 
improve “Likelihood to Recommend” to 
the 75th percentile to benefit inpatients’ 
perception of their care at MHSC, which 
has been associated with an improvement 
in the quality and safety of care. 
 
 
SMART Objective  
By December 31st, 2021, the inpatient 
units at MHSC will implement measures 
to improve “Likelihood to Recommend” to 
the 50th percentile to benefit inpatients 
perception of their care at MHSC, which 
has been associated with an improvement 

in the quality and safety of care. 
 
 
Sub SMART Objective  
OB 
By August 8th, 2021, the OB leadership 
team at MHSC OB unit will implement 
leadership rounding on a minimum of 30 
patients per month and implement 
commit to sit with patients to improve 
“response to concerns/complaints” and 
“nurses listen carefully” to the 35th 
percentile rank to benefit the inpatient 
patient experience survey “likelihood to 
recommend”.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AIM 
Statement 
June 30th, 

2022 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SMART 

Objective 
December 
31st, 2021  

 
 
 

 
 
 
Sub SMART 
Objective 

OB 
August 8th, 

2021 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Inpatient 
 

% 
 

On schedule to 
achieve goal by 
deadline in AIM 

Statement/SMART 
Objective?  If not, 

why not? 
 
 

% 
 

On schedule to 
achieve goal by 
deadline in AIM 

Statement/SMART 
Objective?  If not, 

why not? 
 
 

% 
 

On schedule to 
achieve goal by 
deadline in AIM 

Statement/SMART 
Objective?  If not, 

why not? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11/112



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County  
Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Priorities  

Fiscal Year 2022 

 3 

2022 Priorities Measurement/Metric Baseline 
Benchmark/ 

Goals 
AIM Statement & 
SMART Objective 

Target 
Completion 

Dates 

Fiscal Year to 
Date Data 

 
Sub SMART Objective 
ICU & Med/Surg 
By December 31st, 2021, the ICU and 
Med/Surg Nursing teams will demonstrate 
professional timeliness of response to 
patient requests, followed by touchpoint 
patient meeting regarding request 
outcomes, to improve “nurses’ attitude 
towards requests” to the 40th percentile 
rank to benefit inpatient patient 
experience survey “likelihood to 
recommend”.  
 

 
Sub SMART 
Objective 

ICU & 
Med/Surg 
December 
31st, 2021 

 
% 
 

On schedule to 
achieve goal by 
deadline in AIM 

Statement/SMART 
Objective?  If not, 

why not? 
 

 

Patient Experience 
Surveys 
 
Outpatient Ambulatory 
Services (OAS) 
 
 
 
Responsibility  
Director of Surgical Services & 
Surgery Department Chair 
 
 
Oversight Committee  
PIPS Committee 
Reporting Frequency: Monthly 
 
 
Team 
Director of Surgical Services, 
Surgery Department Chair, 
Clinical Coordinator for Surgical 
Services 
 

 
 

 
 
Outpatient Ambulatory 
Services (OAS) 
 
 
 
Likelihood to Recommend 
 
 
Report Format: 
- OAS CAHPS Scorecard 

Year to Date 
 

 
 

 
 
Outpatient 
Ambulatory 
Services 
(OAS) 
 

FY 2021 
July 2020 to  
June 2021 

 
Likelihood to 
Recommend 

72.31% 
(10th 

percentile) 
 

 
 

 
 
Outpatient 
Ambulatory 
Services (OAS) 
 
 
Likelihood to 
Recommend 
 
- Target Goal: 
50th percentile 
(85%) 
 

- Stretch Goal: 
75th percentile 
(89%) 

 

 
 

 
 
Outpatient Ambulatory Services 
(OAS) 
 
 
 
Aim Statement  
By June 30th, 2022 the Surgery 
Department will implement measures to 
improve “Likelihood to Recommend” to 
the 75th percentile to benefit patient’s 
perception of their care at MHSC, which 
has been associated with an improvement 
in the quality and safety of care. 
 
 
SMART Objective  
By October 31st, 2021, the Surgery 
Department will implement charge nurse 
and leadership rounding, information 
cards at bedside, and patient centered 
approach to whiteboard to improve 
“nurses concern for comfort” and “nurses’ 
response to concerns and questions” to 
85th percentile to benefit patient 
experience survey “likelihood to 
recommend”.  
 

 
 

 
 

Outpatient 
Ambulatory 
Services 
(OAS) 
 

Aim 
Statement 
June 30th, 

2022 
 

 
 
 
 

 
SMART 

Objective 
October 31st, 

2021 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Outpatient 
Ambulatory 
Services (OAS) 
 
 

% 
 

On schedule to 
achieve goal by 
deadline in AIM 

Statement/SMART 
Objective?  If not, 

why not? 

12/112



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County  
Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Priorities  

Fiscal Year 2022 

 4 

2022 Priorities Measurement/Metric Baseline 
Benchmark/ 

Goals 
AIM Statement & 
SMART Objective 

Target 
Completion 

Dates 

Fiscal Year to 
Date Data 

 
Patient Experience 
Surveys 
 
Emergency Department  
 

 
Responsibility 
Director of Emergency 
Department & Medical Director 
of Emergency Department 
 
 
Oversight Committee  
PIPS Committee 
Reporting Frequency: Monthly 
 
 
Team 
Director of Emergency 
Department, Medical Director of 
Emergency Department, Clinical 
Coordinator for Emergency 
Department, Director of Lab, 
Director of Medical Imaging, 
Director of Pharmacy 
 

 
 
 
 
Emergency Department  
 
 
Likelihood to Recommend 
 
 
 
Report Format: 
- Emergency Department 

Facility Scorecard  
Year to Date 

 

 
 
 
 
Emergency 
Department  
 

FY 2021 
July 2020 to  
June 2021 

 
Likelihood to 
Recommend 

61.81% 
(25th 

percentile) 
 

 
 
 
 
Emergency 
Department  
 
Likelihood to 
Recommend 
 
- Target Goal: 

50th 
percentile 
(69.2%) 

 
 
- Stretch Goal: 

75th 
percentile 
(76.6%) 

 

 
 
 
 
Emergency Department  
 
 
AIM Statement  
By June 30th 2022, the Emergency 
Department will implement measures to 
improve “Likelihood to Recommend” to 
the 75th percentile to benefit patient’s 
perception of their care at MHSC, which 
has been associated with an improvement 
in the quality and safety of care. 
 
SMART Objective  
By September 1st, 2021 the Emergency 
Department will implement medication 
education to increase the “nurses’ 
responses to questions and concerns” on 
Press Ganey surveys to the 50th percentile 
to benefit the patients and the 

understanding of the medication which 

they are prescribed/ordered.   
 

 
 
 
 

Emergency 
Department  
 
AIM 
Statement  
June 30th, 
2022 

 
 

 
 

 
SMART 

Objective 
September 
1st, 2021  

 

 
 
 
 
Emergency 
Department  

 
% 
 

On schedule to 
achieve goal by 
deadline in AIM 

Statement/SMART 
Objective?  If not, 

why not? 

 
Patient Experience 
Surveys 
 
Medical Practice (Clinics) 
 
 
Responsibility 
Director of Clinics, Medicine 
Department Chair, Surgery 
Department Chair 
 
Oversight Committee  
PIPS Committee 
Reporting Frequency: Monthly 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Medical Practice (Clinics) 
 
 
 
Likelihood to Recommend 
 
Report Format: 
- Medical Practice 

Scorecard Year to Date  
 

 
 
 
 
Medical 
Practice 
(Clinics) 
 

FY 2021 
July 2020 to  
June 2021 

 
Likelihood to 
Recommend 

92.4% 
(45th) 

 
 
 
 
Medical 
Practice 
(Clinics) 
 
Likelihood to 
Recommend 
 
- Target Goal: 

60th percentile 
(93.2%) 
  

- Stretch Goal: 

75th percentile 
(94.1%)  

 

 
 
 
 
Medical Practice (Clinics) 
 
 
 
AIM Statement 
By June 30th 2022, the Clinics will 
implement measures to improve 
“Likelihood to Recommend” to the 75th 
percentile to benefit outpatient’s 
perception of their care at MHSC, which 
has been associated with an improvement 
in the quality and safety of care. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Medical 
Practice 
(Clinics) 

 
AIM 

Statement 
June 30th, 

2022 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Medical Practice 
(Clinics) 

 
 

% 
 

On schedule to 
achieve goal by 
deadline in AIM 

Statement/SMART 
Objective?  If not, 

why not? 

13/112



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County  
Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Priorities  

Fiscal Year 2022 

 5 

2022 Priorities Measurement/Metric Baseline 
Benchmark/ 

Goals 
AIM Statement & 
SMART Objective 

Target 
Completion 

Dates 

Fiscal Year to 
Date Data 

 
Team 
Director of Clinics, Medicine 
Department Chair, Surgery 
Department Chair, Clinical 
Coordinator Clinics 
 

 
SMART Objective  
By December 31st, 2021, the Clinics will 
implement Cerner and sending test 
results through patient portal, identify 
and communicate OFIs through daily 
rounding in specialty clinics and weekly 
rounding for Family Medicine, and 
complete chart audits, to improve “office 
follow up with test results” to the 75th 
percentile to benefit patient experience 
survey “likelihood to recommend”. 
 

 
SMART 

Objective 
December 
31st. 2021 

 

Clostridioides difficile  

(C. diff) 
 
Reduce hospital-acquired C. diff  
 
 
Responsibility  
Director of Infection Prevention 
 
Oversight Committee  
PIPS Committee 
Reporting Frequency: Monthly 
 
C. diff Team 
- Director of Infection Prevention 
- Chief Nursing Officer 
- Chief Clinical Officer 
- Chief Medical Officer  
- Clinical Coordinator for  
Med/Surg and Intensive Care 
Unit 

- Director of Laboratory 
- Medical Director of Laboratory 
- Medical Director of Emergency 
Department  

- Infection Prevention 
Consultant 

- Hospitalist  
 

 
 
 

 
Number of hospital-acquired 
C. diff cases  

 
 

Report Format: 
- C.Diff Dashboard &  

Star Rating Dashboard 
 

 
 
 

 
FY 2021 

July 2020 to  
June 2021 

 
1 case 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Target Goal: 1 
Stretch Goal: 0 

 

 
 
 

 
AIM Statement 
By December 31st, 2021, the hospital 
inpatient units will implement measures 
to maintain hospital acquired C. diff (HAI) 
at 1 case. This will benefit patient care 
and improve reimbursement. 
(NHSN data calculated based on calendar 
year) 
 
SMART Objective  
By October 31st, 2021, the hospitalists 
and inpatient units will utilize the 
algorithm for diagnosis at a rate of 100%, 
maintaining C. diff cases at 1 for calendar 
year 2021.  
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
AIM 

Statement 
12/31/2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SMART 
Objective  

October 31st, 
2021  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
% 
 

On schedule to 
achieve goal by 
deadline in AIM 

Statement/SMART 
Objective?  If not, 

why not? 

**Additional project teams may be added as necessary.   

14/112



To: Board of Trustees 

From: Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

Re: Chair’s Report … August meeting 

Date: August 25, 2021 

 

Mission Moment Irene commended the staff for their teamwork and for going the extra mile during the 

power outage and recent Covid surge. Recently, the ED has seen more patients than during this winter’s 

surge. On Monday, there were so many cars lined up for the swabbing station that the RSPD had to 

come and direct traffic. 

 

The Annual Influenza Vaccine Program policy was reviewed. The Committee noted that this policy has 

been reviewed and approved by MEC and the medical staff. The program will be rolled out to the staff 

by clinical champions and department leaders.  

 

Quality Program Consultant Tier Report As of August, 21, the hospital has completed 51 of 73 

improvement items recommended by the quality consultant, Mella Grainger, RN, one year ago. The 

recommended items were department specific and represented a wide-variety of patient safety and 

quality concerns. Kudos to the staff for completing a large amount of work in a small amount of time. 

IPPS Final Rule, OPPS Proposed Rule CMS is adding 5 new IPPS measures and removing 3 old 

measures from its Inpatient Quality Reporting Program. (IPPS measures are part of the Star Rating 

formula.) One new measure is a Covid vaccination coverage requirement. The other is regarding 

maternal morbidity. This measure reflects the fact the US has almost twice as many maternal deaths as 

in other developed countries and is a nudge to hospitals to partner with community organizations to 

deal with the “social determinants of disease.” 

CMS is adding several new OPPS measures to increase price transparency, access to care and improve 

health equity. Included in these measures are Covid vaccination coverage for health care providers.  

Medical Staff Update See separate document by Dr. Poyer 

Board Quality workshop planning process has begun. More information will be provided as plans get 

solidified. 

 

Dashboards The revised organization of the Quality packet was noted and complimented. In the new 

format, each dashboard now has its own narrative, which makes the dashboards easier to interpret and 

this section of the packet easier to read. The patient experience section included graphs comparing 

scores for July 1 – Dec 31, 2020, and Jan 1 – Ag 17, 2021. The 2021 scores were noticeably improved 

compared to 2020 scores. HCAHPS scores are important—accounting for 22% in the Star Rating formula. 

The plethora of quality metrics and their summary reports, along with the minutes of the August 

meeting, are part of the September Board packet. I urge you to read the full Quality packet for August, 

which is in the Board portal. Hats off to the Quality staff for the new layout of the packet. 

 

Next meeting is September 22nd. 

15/112



 

  Page 1 of 3 

Confidential   8/27/2021 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

August 25, 2021 

 
 

Present:  Voting Members: Kara Jackson (Quality Director), Dr. Kari Quickenden (CCO), Irene 

Richardson (CEO), Dr. Barbara Sowada (Quality Board Chair), Ed Tardoni (Quality 

Board Member), Tami Love (CFO), Dr. Melinda Poyer (CMO), Dr. Phillip Najm, Leslie 

Taylor (Clinic Director) 

 

Non-voting Members:  Cindy Nelson, Noreen Hove, Valerie Boggs, Corey Worden, 

 

Guests: Jennifer Rogers 

 

Absent/Excused:  Voting Members:  Ann Marie Clevenger (CNO), Dr. Alicia Gray  

  

Non-voting Members: Kalpana Pokhrel, Karali Plonsky  

 

Guests: Taylor Jones (Board of Trustees Chair), Kandi Pendleton (Board of Trustee) 

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada  

 

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Dr. Sowada called the Meeting to order at 8:15 am. The Quality Agenda was presented for 

approval. Ms. Jackson noted that the Trauma survey was not yet available. Dr. Sowada 

requested a motion to approve the agenda, minus the Trauma Survey. Dr. Poyer motioned to 

approve, Mr. Tardoni seconded. Motion carried. 

 

Dr. Sowada presented the July 21, 2021 Quality Minutes for approval. Ms. Jackson motioned to 

approve and Dr. Quickenden seconded. Motion carried.     

 

Mission Moment 

Ms. Richardson relayed our mission moment was for our swabbing station and it’s staff. We had 

an exceptionally busy day at the swabbing station a few days ago, with the line of cars going 

out the parking lot and down Skyline Drive. RSPD came up to help direct traffic.  Ms. Richardson 

wanted to give a shout out to the Swabbing station staff, the Lab staff, and all the other staff 

that stepped up to help when and wherever they could, to take care of the waiting patrons. 

 

Old Business 

Dr. Sowada presented the Annual Influenza Vaccine for approval. Mr. Tardoni motioned to 

approve and Ms. Richardson seconded. Motion carried. Dr. Sowada questioned 

implementation plan and how we felt about mandatory vaccinations and how staff will react, 

and also thoughts on the COVID vaccine. Dr. Poyer stated this will be rolled out through 

Employee health and that the Providers have discussed the plan. Ms. Richardson stated it was 

the right move to make, and we would continue to work with staff on flu vaccinations as well as 

COVID vaccination. Dr. Poyer noted that President Biden had announced that the CDC will be 

announcing the plan for mandatory COVID vaccination for Nursing Home health care workers, 

in order to receive Medicare/Medicaid funds. Dr. Sowada noted Hospitals could be next! 

 

 

16/112



 

  Page 2 of 3 

Confidential   8/27/2021 

PIPs Priorities updates were reviewed by Ms. Jackson. A few minor changes have been made, 

including adding Hospitalists to the C.diff team,  

 

Quality Workshop of the Board is in planning phase. Robin Fife was enlisted to help organize 

meetings. We have reached out for a volunteer from the Board, awaiting that volunteer. 

 

Ms. Jackson reviewed the Quality Program Consultant Tier Report. We have moved many items 

over to our completed tab. Ms. Jackson stated the stand out for her was the work on Tier Three 

by Dr. Quickenden, Carrie Canestrop, HIM Director, and their team to establish our coding 

review process regarding OP 10 – Abdomen CT with and without contrast, OP 23 – Head CT/MRI 

results for stroke patients within 45 minutes, and OP 29 – colonoscopy follow up for average risk 

patients. Dr. Sowada pointed out – HIM and the integral part of our Coders play in the picture. 

Dr. Quickenden noted they have been working closely with Ms. Canestrop, and her staff, by 

involving them more and expect that collaboration will continue. Dr. Sowada noted how 

important the Coders role is in quality outcomes. 

 

New Business 

Ms. Jackson reviewed the Root Cause Analysis (RCA) report. In June we had a patient safety 

event. An RCA is a structured method to analysis adverse events retrospectively. Dr. 

Quickenden stated the takeaway from this event was additional education for the contract 

staff so they have a better understanding of the processes. 

 

Ms. Jackson next reviewed the IPPS FY 2022 Final Rule and the OPPS FY 2022 Proposed Rule; IPPS 

– Inpatient Perspective Payment System, and OPPS – Outpatient Perspective Payment System. 

There are 5 new IPPS measure; Maternal Morbidity Structural Measure, Hybrid Hospital-Wide All-

Cause Risk Standardized Mortality, COVID-19 Vaccination Coverage among Health Care 

Personnel, two medication-related Adverse Event ECQM – Hospital Harm-Severe Hypoglycemia 

eCQM and Hospital Harm-Sever Hyperglycemia eCQM. Three measures were removed; 

Exclusive Breast Milk Feeding, Admin Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients, 

Discharged on Statin Medication eCQM.  Dr. Sowada questioned whether the physicians have 

been brought in for discussion on Hybrid Hospital-Wide All-Cause Risk Standardized Mortality. Ms. 

Jackson stated they hadn’t yet, as the rule was new and information was still coming in.   

 

Ms. Jackson continue to review the Value Based Purchasing, noting this year’s reimbursement 

would be neutral payments, as the first 2 quarters are not being compiled due to COVID and 

excluding Quarter 1 and 2 data. Normally CMS withholds 2% of our payments, which we can 

earn back based on performance, plus sometimes additional.  

 

Ms. Jackson also reviewed the Star Rating and that certain measures will be suppressed due to 

COVID, but the rating will continue and we should see an update between January and April. 

 

OPPS has 3 new measures; COVID-19 Vaccination Coverage Among HCP, Breast Screening 

Recall Rates, ST – Segment Elevation Myocardial Infarction (STEMI) eCQM. Two measures were 

removed; Remove OP 2- Fibrinolytic Therapy Received within 20 minutes of ED Arrival and OP 3 – 

Median Time to Transfer to Another Facility for Acute Coronary Intervention. 

 

Medical Staff Update 

Dr. Poyer gave the Medical Staff Update. Hospitalist have been reviewing C.diff, mortality and 

readmission data with the team, including transfer data where we remain below the national 

17/112



 

  Page 3 of 3 

Confidential   8/27/2021 

average of 5%. Dr. Najm, the ED, and Hospitalist are working on the Sepsis measure. Dr. Ryan will 

be working with the perinatal group on perinatal measures. We are still working with Dr. Asper on 

surgical measures.  

 

Dr. Poyer addressed a comment overheard on Med/Surg regarding a long wait in ED, and 

noted we the current challenges we should anticipate more such comments.  

  

On July 30th our automatic transfer switches were hit by lightning, all surgeries were cancelled 

except emergency surgeries that couldn’t be stabilized and shipped. This was rectified August 

13th, with official stand down on August 20th, when final switch for OB egress lighting was fixed. 

The opening of the physical ICU intended to help relive the COVID load in the ED has been 

delayed from August 16th to Aug 27th, due to 9 employees who are out with COVID or exposure 

to COVID. 

 

Dr. Poyer complimented ALL staff working through these challenges COVID has brought, but 

also the addition of a lightning strike that took out systems that created additional challenges! 

 

Informational Items for Review/Discussion 

Dr. Sowada stated she had a few questions or comments on each topic. 

 

 Star Rating – Dr. Sowada liked the Responsibility column and also appreciated ALL the 

green which shows the outcome is moving in the right direction. 

 HCAHPS – Dr. Sowada wanted to congratulate the ED, Dr. Najm and Ms. White on their 

concerted efforts. 

 Patient Safety – Dr. Sowada noted that although not all the “dots” were in the blue, they 

were definitely moving in a good direction. Ms. Richardson stated we are seeing more 

positive comments on quality and patient experience, which is a tribute to the staff. 

 Risk – Valerie Boggs has been heading up this committee. 

 Grievance – no comments 

 Additional Standards – Biggest opportunity for improvement is in perinatal measures. We 

met with Dr. Ryan last month. 

 

Mr. Tardoni gifted us with a final thought – we need to realize we will see impacts from outside 

forces, “we gotta be like the butterfly they are trying to pin to a board and fight like heck!”.  We 

are having successes and we are doing well in the big picture. 

 
Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 9:35 am 

 

Next Meeting    September 22, 2021 at 08:15 am via ZOOM. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

18/112



To: Board of Trustees 

From: Barbara J. Sowada, Chair 

Re: Human Resources Committee Meeting 

Date: August 16, 2021 

 

The Human Resources Committee met August 16th from 3:00 to 4:00 pm by Zoom.  

 

Major discussion items were as follows: 

 

 Turnover continue to rise, including nursing service which is a new phenomenon. This 

increased turnover is consistent with national data. Recruitment of nurses and 

laboratorians has become challenging. The hospital has added new incentives to their 

recruitment package. 

 Primary reasons for nursing resignations are covid fatigue and opportunity to make 

more money by becoming an agency nurse. The bulk of nursing resignations are those 

with 2-4 years tenure. This is a loss to the hospital because valuable experience is gained 

during their first two years of employment; agencies want experienced nurses. 

 Employee Policy: Introductory and Probationary Periods was reviewed. The two 

significant changes are 1) new employee introductory period has been extended from 

90 to 365 days and 2) current employees who transfer to a different position have a 90-

day probationary period. During the introductory and probationary periods, employees 

are at-will employees. This policy is still being worked on. 

 Staff engagement survey was put on hold. Hospital has a contract with the Gallagher 

Company to do the second survey. The first was conducted two years ago and was 

scheduled to begin July, 2021. Because of Covid and the Cerner conversion it was 

decided to wait for a less busy time. 

 Revisions (if any) to the HR Charter will be finalized at the September HR meeting. 

Voting members are to submit their revisions to Amber Fisk and Barbara Sowada by 

September 13th. 

 Mission moment. Kari mentioned that the patient surveys for the ED for the past week 

were 100% positive. 

 

For more detail, see the reports and minutes of this meeting which are included in the 

September Board packet. 

 

Next HR meeting will be September 20th. 

 

 

19/112



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting – Minutes Draft 
Monday – August 16, 2021 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Present by Zoom: Barbara Sowada & Kari Pendleton 
Voting Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell 
Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Amy Lucy, Tami Love, Kari Quickenden, Ann 
Clevenger, Cindy Nelson 
 
 
 
Barbara called the meeting to order. The motion to approve the agenda was made by Suzan, second by 
Irene. Motion carried. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 

Barbara asked that the July and August minutes be included in the September Board meeting 
packet. Amber said she will make that happen. 

 
II. TURNOVER REPORT: 
 

Amber reviewed the overall turnover information as of the end of July. She said we have had 21 
nurses leave in the last 7 months. Our turnover rate overall is at 20%. The national average is around 
18% for hospitals. Amber said we have been discussing RN turnover. Barbara asked of the 21 nurses who 
have resigned, how many were employed for less than 90 days and how many fit in different year 
categories. Ann said she thinks most of those are around the 2, 3, and 4-year range. Ann, Amber and 
Irene have been meeting to review and develop action items. Barbara said tough times call for bold 
actions. Ann thanked Amy and Amber for helping to get travelers here as quickly as they can. Irene said 
everyone is doing an excellent job. She said it is not comforting to know we are not alone, but we know 
we are not alone. All hospitals in the region and the nation are facing this supply and demand issue at 
this point. Barbara asked for more information on how the overall turnover number is calculated. In 
review, Amy said the numbers should say 69 in both spots. She said she will make the correction in the 
formulas. 

 
III. OPEN POSITIONS: 
 

Amy reviewed the open positions. She said we have a total of 35 open positions: 28 FT, 4 PT, 3 
PRN. Amy said 11 of those are RNs. She reported we have been reaching out to some RNs who have left 
in the past to see if they want to come back. We have added sign-on bonus and relocation benefits to 
try to attract some other candidates. Amber said the sign-on varies and we take each offer on a case-by-
case basis to make it like a package. Amber said we are typically seeing a $5,000 sign on bonus and 
$2,500 relocation. We give everything a try. She said we are willing to listen and negotiate where we 
can. Barbara said this is a tough time to be recruiting. Kandi asked if we are giving retention bonuses to 
people staying or something built in to keep people here. Irene said we did give a retention bonus to 
staff in December and also in June. Irene said we are doing the best we can to help staff get through this 

20/112



 

Minutes of the August 16, 2021 Human Resources Committee 

Page 2 

because it has been difficult. Last year during Covid we weren’t able to give out raises but we did include 
raises in the FY22 budget. Irene said we truly do appreciate and want to retain our staff.   

  
IV. CONTRACT STAFFING: 

 
Amber said she included traveler information in the meeting packet following the discussion at 

the July meeting. 
 

V. EMPLOYEE POLICIES: 
 

a. Introductory/Probationary Period Policy – Suzan said this has been on the backburner 
for over a year. The current policy is for 90 days. There have been discussions that maybe we should 
extend that period of time and we are trying to tie this to the termination policy that Geoff Phillips is 
working on. Suzan said she, Marty, Geoff, Amber, and Irene met and realize it is time to get this intro 
policy in place. Currently, all staff at the hospital are for-cause employees so they can only be termed for 
cause. The only at-will staff are introductory employees and that is only for 90 days. We are trying to 
extend that period to get a better feel for if we have a good fit. The proposal is to move from 90 days to 
one year. Suzan said the hired after date is totally flexible. She said she just added a date as a 
placeholder because she thought that would be the earliest possible. Suzan sent a draft out to Irene and 
Amber for review. Amber suggested calling those transferring “probationary staff” and it would be for 
90 days instead of a year. Suzan needs input to see if we are on the right track. Irene noted this is just 
for HR Committee review and not approval at the committee level at this time. Tami said we have to 
make sure our benefits align because some benefits, like PTO, begin at 90 days. Suzan thinks she 
highlighted those sections in the exempt and non-exempt policies. Amber said we still want new hires to 
get PTO after 90 days. Barbara said with recruiting becoming harder, most organizations turn on the 
benefits after 90 days. Barbara asked if have any discussion as to putting people who are transferring on 
probation whether that might curtail people who are wanting to transfer especially if taking on a job 
with more responsibilities. Suzan said we are open to all ideas on the best way to handle that situation.  
Kari asked what happens with a new hire of less than one year who transfers to another position. Does 
that employee finish the year or does the employee move to 90 days? Amber said you finish out the 
year regardless. The 90 days runs concurrently with whatever is left in the one year. Barbara asked if the 
nuances discussed would be included in the draft. Suzan said she will do that. Irene said the goal is to 
bring the draft policy to the September committee meeting and then to the Board at the October 
meeting. Barbara stressed the timing is what the staff wants to have happen. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
VI. EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT SURVEY TIMELINE: 

 
Amber said we did one in 2019. With that, the contract was to do one then and then another in 

two years. It has come up on that second year. Amber said we should have results around the end of the 
year. There was discussion of concern around timing and if the survey could be postponed to a more 
neutral time to obtain more realistic results and a true representation of employee engagement. Amber 
said she will contact  Gallagher to see if we may postpone without violating our contract. Barbara asked 
that the minutes reflect this will be pushed into the future. 
  

21/112



 

Minutes of the August 16, 2021 Human Resources Committee 

Page 3 

VII. COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS, OTHER DISCUSSION(S): 
 

a. Charter Update – Amber said charter review was discussed at the previous meeting. The 
last revision was done in 2020. The group agreed the best use of time would be to review the charter 
and submit questions and changes to Amber and Barbara to bring back to the September meeting for 
review. Barbara requested feedback by September 13. There were no other reports or discussions.  
 
VIII. DETERMINATION OF NEXT MEETING DATE: 

 
The next meeting is scheduled September 20 at 3:00 PM.  

 
Barbara asked if we would close out the meeting with a Mission Moment. Cindy shared 

information provided by a Patient and Family Advisory Council member about a great experience at the 
3000 College Drive Lab. Kari reported Karali Plonsky distributed 8/2-8/8 Press Ganey patient survey 
comments and 100% of the ED comments were positive. Kari recognized Kim Wright and the ED staff. 
Irene shared a positive comment from someone she knows who visited the ED and had a great 
experience.  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:49 PM. 

22/112



23/112



24/112



25/112



26/112



27/112



28/112



29/112



30/112



31/112



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting – Minutes Draft 
Monday – July 19, 2021 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Attending by Zoom: Barbara Sowada & Kandi Pendleton 
Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell 
Guests by Zoom: Amy Lucy, Kari Quickenden, Ann Clevenger, Tami Love 
 
 
Barbara called the meeting to order at 3:02pm.  

Barbara motioned to amend the agenda so that minutes could be approved prior to welcoming the newest trustee 
member to the committee. Irene seconded, all ayes, motion carried.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 

Barbara noted some minor typo and spacing problems. The motion to approve the May 17, 2021, minutes as 
presented was made by Barbara, second by Irene. Motion carried.   

 
II. TURNOVER REPORT: 
 

Amber said the overall numbers are in the packet.  
 

III. OPEN POSITIONS: 
 

Amy said we have 30 openings with 19 of those being for Registered Nurses (RN). 
 

IV. EMPLOYEE POLICIES: 
 

a. Suzan shared a ‘Employee Policies Update’ list via email (attached in packet). 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
V. WELCOME: 

Barbara welcomed the Committee’s newest trustee member, Kandi Pendleton and asked her to share a little 

about herself. Ms. Pendleton was introduced to all members and guests of the committee.   

 

VI. COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS, OTHER DISCUSSION(S): 
Barbara mentioned the need to review the HR Committee Charter. Will discuss at next meeting.  
 

VII. DETERMINATION OF NEXT MEETING DATE: 
 

The next meeting is scheduled 8/16/21 at 3:00 PM.  
 
Barbara thanked everyone for participating. The meeting adjourned at 3:57 PM. 

32/112



F&A COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD AUGUST 2021 

Chair – Ed Tardoni 

 The Finance and Audit Committee met in Zoom format this month.  All voting members were present. 

F&A DATA FOR THE MONTH 

The usual F&A reports are included in the Board packet.  

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION. 

The committee, by unanimous vote, sends a $56,165 expenditure to the Board for consideration. 

FY 22-13  $56,165    (not budgeted) 

This item was requested by Ron Cheese.  It is a sole source request with the justification being 

compatibility with the Cerner system.  The item is computer software that interfaces with Cerner, 

operates on line, and automates the insurance preapproval process.  It is anticipated that it will pay for 

itself within a several month period. 

STANDARD AND POORS CREDIT RATING 

Board member attention is directed to the credit rating report contained in this month’s financial 

package.  MHSC rating was improved from negative outlook to stable. 

BOND REFINANCING  

The CEO briefed the committee on progress of the bond refinancing effort.  The package will go out to 

the market by end of the week of August 23rd.  The goal is to close on a deal by the end of the calendar 

year.  Adding two to three million capital dollars to the package was considered but rejected by MHSC. 

AUTOMATIC TRANSFER SWITCH DAMAGE 

The committee was updated on the economic impacts of this event.  Filings with the appropriate 

insurance carriers have been made. 

NEXT MEETING. 

The Finance and Audit Committee will meet, by Zoom, Wednesday September 29th.  The meeting time is 

under review to allow inclusion of medical staff members who have been appointed to the group.,  

 

 

33/112



34/112



35/112



36/112



37/112



38/112



39/112



40/112



41/112



42/112



43/112



44/112



45/112



46/112



47/112



48/112



49/112



50/112



51/112



52/112



53/112



54/112



55/112



56/112



57/112



58/112



59/112



60/112



61/112



62/112



63/112



64/112



65/112



66/112



67/112



68/112



69/112



70/112



71/112



72/112



73/112



74/112



75/112



76/112



77/112



78/112



79/112



80/112



81/112



82/112



83/112



84/112



85/112



86/112



87/112



88/112



89/112



90/112



91/112



92/112



93/112



94/112



95/112



96/112



97/112



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…August Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  August 26, 2021 
 
Regarding the Central Plant Expansion Project, concern was expressed that Harris Mechanical 
has not been paid what is owed them…about $12,000. Discussion occured about the possibility 
of KK Construction or any contractor placing a lien on the Hospital. Board attorney Geoff 
Phillips later opined that they cannot as MHSC is a governmental entity. 
 
Regarding the HVAC/UVG projects…Jake is pleased with Groathouse’s work, although he has 
concerns that they might not have the staffing to keep up with the schedule. Subsequent to 
their original CMAR contract, they have been awarded significantly more work. Supply chain 
issues are of concern. The penthouse should be completed by the end of September. 
 
Regarding the S-1 Unit, the project is going well and this unit should be operational sometime in 
September. 
 
Regarding the Medical Imaging Renovation Project…supply chain issues are of concern. When 
asked about the approaching cold weather, Jake indicated that he has few concerns about this 
situation, except that the potential exterior grade which is being costed out could be affected 
by cold, winter weather. Will and Jake seem to be on top of the project. 
 
Regarding the Chemo Mixing Room Project…staff has indicated that this is a high priority 
project. Staff is reviewing the engineering and estimated construction costs. 
 
Regarding Dr. Sulentich’s Office Renovation Project…final approval has been given by the State 
of Wyoming and the project should be bid out soon. No work will be allowed to be done until it 
is certain all materials are on hand so as to ensure minimal disruption to Dr. Sulentich’s medical  
practice. 
 
Regarding the Bulk Oxygen Project…it is hopeful that this project can be completed before the 
very cold weather hits this fall/winter. The goal is to bid the project out soon. Western 
Engineers and Airgas are both involved in the design and engineering of the project. 
 
Regarding the Building Automation System Project, the contractors are tied up with other 
projects; thus, no progress on this project. 
 
Regarding the Main Sprinkler Line Project…Supplies have been ordered, but no work can be 
carried out by High Desert Construction until Wyoming DEQ grants approval. 
 

98/112



Regarding the tabled projects…they are still on hold as other higher priorities need the 
attention of the Hospital. 
 
Regarding the Generator Automatic Transfer Switch, John Kolb has played a key role in making 
some necessary repairs. It has been determined that there is likely an issue with electrical 
grounding. It has been recommended that MHSC bring in a firm with expertise in this area to 
determine what needs to be done to avoid future similar issues with a lightening strike.  
 
More detail on these subjects can be found in the minutes of the Building and Grounds 
Committee meeting. 

99/112



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

August 17, 2021 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on August 17, 2021, at 

3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

   Mr. Jake Blevins, ST&B Engineering 

   Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

    

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Tardoni made a motion to approve the 

agenda with this addition.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the July 20, 2021 meeting. Mr. Horan 

made a motion to approve the minutes.  Mr. Tardoni seconded; motion passed.   

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Horan said the maintenance metrics are remarkably consistent.  He said there will be some 

overtime due to issues with construction.  He expects July to come in on or under budget.  Mr. 

Tardoni noted the consistency of the metrics and the seasonal fluctuations.  

  
 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Central Plant Expansion 

 

Mr. Blevins has confirmation from Harris that they have not received their final payment from KK 

Mechanical.  He has been unable to get a response as to why they were short paid.  We had short 

paid BHI for reasons not concerning the work of Harris.  The amount owed to Harris is about 

$12,000.  If not made whole, Harris could place a lien against the Hospital if they do not get a 

response from KK.  It was decided Administration and Mr. Blevins would meet with the hospital 

legal team to decide next steps  

 

 HVAC/UVG Projects 

 

Mr. Johnston reported on the progress of this project.  The penthouse should be completed mid to 

late September.  They are finishing up drywall, smoke detectors. Casework and flooring will be 

completed this week and next week.  They are repairing a water leak in the cold-water pipe. Mr. 

Kelsey asked if everyone was still happy with Groathouse.  Mr. Blevins said they are pleased with 

the work but has some worry about scheduling, the amount of work on their plate and ability to 

100/112



 

 

Minutes of the August 17, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

staff up.  Mr. Johnston added there has been some delays with deliveries due to nationwide supply 

chain issues.  Mr. Kelsey asked they keep on the vendors to get answers about delayed equipment.  

 

S1 Unit 

 

Mr. Blevins said they are constructing the new unit and the casing is in place.  Mr. Johnston said 

it is about 75% complete and the unit should be up and running in the next week or two. 

 

Medical Imaging Renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley said there have been some equipment delays for the bathrooms and locker room. 

There was a meeting regarding the scheduling of the next two phases and how to move through 

those areas and not disrupt patient care.  Mr. Kelsey commented we really do need to stay on the 

vendors to get answers.  He also asked about the timing of the project and the upcoming cold 

weather.  Mr. Blevins said the HVAC project is very close to the punch list phase and they will be 

able to close out.  This portion of the project has the highest risk of being affected by winter 

weather.  The possible exterior upgrade, which is still in the proposal costing phase, could be 

impacted by winter conditions.  Mr. Wheatley said a very small area would be impacted in the 

Imaging areas as most renovation is internal to the building. 

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  

 

Mr. Horan said a group met internally and this project was given high priority.  We have received 

the engineering and proposed costs of the project and are reviewing. 

 

Dr. Sulentich Office  

 

Mr. Wheatley met with Dr. Sulentich and hospital staff.  The scheduling of the project is vital and 

they will work with the contractor to coincide scheduling with delivery of all materials.  The State 

granted final approval last week and they are ready to put out a bid.  There is some concern on 

availability of materials for this project also.  All materials will need to be on hand to start as no 

partial work will be allowed. 

 

Bulk Oxygen 

 

Mr. Horan met with Western Engineers and Airgas and hope to have a comprehensive plan by next 

week.  They are still hoping they can complete the project before winter.  Most of the work is civil 

work and he hopes to get the project out to bid soon.  He will bring the plans to the next meeting.  

One issue is the required turning radius for the oxygen delivery truck. 

 

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if this was still on hold.  Mr. Horan said Vaughn’s is still unable to work with 

Harris as they are tied up with other projects.  There is no definite start date at this time.  

 

 

 

 

101/112



 

 

Minutes of the August 17, 2021 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

 

Main Sprinkler Line 

 

Mr. Johnston said Western Engineers sent additional information to the State DEQ this week.  High 

Desert Construction has started ordering supplies but can’t start on the project until formal 

approval from the State DEQ 

 

Tabled Projects   

 

Mr. Horan said there are no new updates on the remaining tabled projects.  Mr. Kelsey commented 

their hands are full and he appreciates the efforts and thanked everyone.  Mr. Horan said healthcare 

projects are tough as it is a 24/7 operation and have to maintain full services.  He thanked Mr. 

Kelsey for recognizing them. 

 

New Business 

 

Generator ATS 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the Board has been kept updated on the generator automatic transfer switch event.  

Mr. Horan is thankful for Mr. Taylor Jones and Mr. John Kolb.  Mr. Kolb was able to make most 

of the repairs to get back to normal operations.  There are a few things left to repair but they do 

not affect the hospital ATS.  The MOB life safety switch, which impacts egress lighting, door 

alarms and the Sleep Lab, is expected to get fixed this week.  Facilities will remain on 24/7 standby 

until the switch is fixed.  Mr. Tardoni added Mr. Kolb is very knowledgeable.  Mr. Horan explained 

the hospital generator has three branches; equipment, critical and life safety.  They believe the 

damage was from a lightening strike.  There is surge protection on the utility side but everything 

that failed was on the generator side.  Ms. Richardson had sent the needed parts list to Mr. Kolb 

who was able to get them.  Mr. Kelsey said they are very fortunate Mr. Jones thought to reach out 

to Mr. Kolb. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if there were any other topics to discuss. Ms. Richardson said the Space 

Committee met to talk about other projects.  They discussed adding new money to the refinancing 

of the bonds to help with the projects but it was decided any new money would cut into the interest 

savings. There was also discussion on prioritizing projects for a potential SPT project next year. 

 

The next meeting will be held September 21 at 3:30 p.m.   

 

The meeting adjourned at 4:29 p.m.  
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

102/112



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BUILDING & GROUNDS COMMITTEE AGENDA 

Tuesday ~ August 17, 2021  3:30 p.m.  Zoom teleconference   

   

Voting Board Committee Members:     Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chairman  

Ed Tardoni, Trustee 

 

Voting Staff Committee Members:   Irene Richardson, CEO 

Tami Love, CFO 

Jim Horan, Director of Facilities 

 

Non-voting Members:     Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor 

Stevie Nosich, Safety Coordinator 

 

Guests:      Jake Blevins – ST&B Engineering 

Will Wheatley – PlanOne Architects 

Jeff Smith - County Commissioner Liaison 

 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order      Marty Kelsey 

2. Approve Agenda      Marty Kelsey 

3. Approve Minutes – July 20, 2021    Marty Kelsey 

4. Maintenance Metrics      Jim Horan 

a. Work orders  

b. Department overtime  

c. Budget variance 

 

5. Old Business        

a. Project Review       

i. Central Plant expansion    Jake Blevins/Gerry Johnston 

ii. HVAC/UVG projects    Jake Blevins     

iii. Medical Imaging renovation   Will Wheatley/Jake Blevins/Gerry 

Johnston 

iv. S1 Unit      Jake Blevins 

v. Chemo Mixing room    Jim Horan 

vi. Dr. Sulentich Office    Will Wheatley 

103/112



vii. Bulk Oxygen     Jim Horan 

viii. Building automation system   Jim Horan 

ix. Main sprinkler line    Jim Horan 

b. Tabled projects      Jim Horan 

i. Replacement roofing for power house  

ii. OB Bathtubs to Showers 

iii. Foundation Waldner House retaining wall 

   

6. New Business  

a. Generator ATS event     Jim Horan     

 

7. Next meeting schedule      Marty Kelsey 

a. September 21, 2021 Zoom; 3:30P – 4:30P 

 

8. Adjournment       Marty Kelsey 

 

 

 

 

 

104/112



105/112



106/112



107/112



108/112



109/112



110/112



111/112



112/112


	Agenda - September 1 2021 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	Minutes
	FY 2022 PIPS Priorities Updated PDF
	Quality Chair August Report to Board for September Meeting Barbara Sowada
	Quality Minutes 8.25.21
	Human Resources August Chair Report to Board for September Meeting Barbara Sowada
	Human Resources Minutes August 16 2021 Draft
	HR Committee Info to go to Board for September 2021
	Human Resources Minutes July 19 2021 Draft
	Finance &amp; Audit Committee
	Capital Expenditure Request
	August Committee Meeting Information 
	Building and Grounds August Chair Report to Board for September Meeting Marty Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes August 17 2021 Draft
	BG 2021 Agenda August
	Check List for Ambulance Agreement with Castle Rock
	Ambulance Agreement with Castle Rock
	1. Cardinal Fifth Amendment to Pharmacy Agreement 
	PolicySta

